First Methodist Church
Washington, NC
When the city of Washington was founded in 1775 there was no organized place of worship. Soon the Hinton family moved to Washington and started worshiping in their home. They invited others to join them as they worshiped according to John Wesley's Methodism started in 1738 in England. Wesley sent missionaries to the colonies and the Methodist Episcopal Church was formally started in the new United States in 1784. Bishop Francis Asbury visited the Washington church that had been built in 1780 and consecrated it as a Methodist Society in 1784.	This was the first church in the town of Washington, North Carolina. Since this early beginning, started because of missionaries, the church has grown and has consistently been involved in mission activities both local and worldwide.
Growth of members has been a catalyst multiple times throughout the more than 200 years that the church family has been worshiping together. This growth created the need for more physical space for worship, outreach activities and Christian education. The church on Market Street, built in 1780, was replaced by a bigger one on the Second Street lot in 1832. That church was destroyed in 1864, during the Civil War so a new small church was built in 1867. It was outgrown and taken down and the current Sanctuary was built in 1897-1899. Additions to the church were added in 1918 and again in 1970. By 2005 the growth of the church had again raised the need for more space for the membership had grown to 1403. Members were asking about the restoration of both the upstairs and the basement of the Sunday school building that had been built in 1918. The conversation continued about what might be needed in the future and what God was calling us to do. These conversations led to the 2005 Charge Conference voting on forming a Building Study Committee to investigate and discuss the needs for adding space to the current church buildings.
By the 2006 Charge Conference, Pastor Ray Wittman reported that ''The Building Study Committee had assessed the present and future needs of the church and of the local community. They projected the potential membership growth, assessed current and future ministries, and church programs, and then developed an accessibility plan".
Committee members were Jeryl Rawls, Bob Rich, Marshall Singleton, Shelley Tubaugh, Rick Howdy, Dale Peele, Mike Moore, Radell Rasmussen, Bill Bedsole, Tom Atkins, Seth Talley, Mary
Bilbro and Brigitte Morris. The committee recommended that the 2006 Charge Conference authorize a building committee, which was appointed by Lay leadership, along with other Church Council committees, to develop plans, designs, cost estimates and financing options.
The 2006 Charge Conference voted to establish a building committee that was made up of the members of the 2005 Study committee plus additional members. Rick Howdy was Chair, Jeryl Rawls, Vice Chair and Tom Atkins, Secretary. Members added were Lauren Riddick, Bill Stowasser, Jeff Moss, Roy Catlett, Polly Williams and Ray Wittman. The building study
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committee had concluded that the present facilities, although well-maintained and cared for, were inadequate to meet present and future needs including handicap accessibility.
Growing buildings require space. Land was available next to the current buildings due to gifts of lots from homeowners in the 19S0's adjacent to the church. In 1980 the church had purchased the Sea Board Coastline property east of the church along Gladden Street. Leon and Florence Roebuck had a dream that the church would have a Family Life center. They donated the land behind the current Fellowship Hall building in 1989.
In 2007, Pastor Danny Allen was sent to First Methodist as Senior Pastor with Susan Harrison assigned as an Associate Pastor. The building committee was hard at work. The architect, Dunn & Dalton from Kinston, was hired in September 2007. A stewardship campaign, New Horizons, was started in January of 2008 with help from Resource Services Inc. Pledges were $2.3 million. The Church Council approved the committee to seek bids for construction in March of 2009 and WIMCO was chosen.
A Charge Conference was called for April 20, 2009 so that members could vote whether or not to go forward with the building project. It was announced that pledges had been made equaling $ 2.3 million. A large number of members attended and the vote was overwhelming
for starting the building. A line of credit for $3,300,000 was arranged with First Citizen's Bank. The groundbreaking was held on September 13, 2009. The preparation for coAstruction started with the moving of the remains in what had been the cemetery of St. John the Evangelist Catholic Church. The first Catholic Church in North Carolina was built in 1828 on the corner of Van Norden and Third Street. The church had been destroyed during the Civil War on April 30, 1864 along with our Methodist Episcopal Church South. St. John the Evangelist was never rebuilt. Using documents of those listed in the Catholic Parish registry of people that were buried in the cemetery, we had an idea of who we were moving. R. Ward Sutton Cemetery Service was hired and began disinterring the remains on September 29 finishing on October 5, 2009. Father Arturo Cabra of Mother of Mercy Catholic Church in Washington consecrated the burial plots at Oakdale Cemetery where 34 were reinterred. The women of the Ladies Aid Society and the Christian Workers Society had purchased three plots with eight grave sites each in 1903. These plots were available to use to reinter the remains from St. John the
Evangelist cemetery. * A full report available in the church archive.
It took 14 months to construct the new building and renovate the Fellowship Hall and Sunday School building that was built in the1970s. In June 2010 as construction moved along the congregation was invited to write on the studs Scriptures seeking God's blessings. At the Charge Conference in 2010, the following Pastor's report painted a picture of the process that the church family was experiencing. "At this meeting last year, we dreamed a dream of beginning construction in the future, of a Family Life center, a Children's Ministry area, New

kitchen facilities and Conference room. From this meeting last year to today, the miracle of "dream becoming reality" has happened. The new space is yet to be named and its possible uses have only begun to be discovered but we are nonetheless experiencing a miracle in our time. The opportunities for new ministries are opening to us like a beautiful sunrise. We must remain conscious that the responsibility for excellence is ours. God has entrusted us with a measure of talent to use to bring people to Him. We must prayerfully follow the leadership of the Holy Spirit in order to be faithful with the opportunities God has placed in our care. As one of our men said at the beginning of this project, "It's all His anyway!" ... Our people continue to be servant leaders in the community through multiple outreaches like the Caring Christian Carpenters, building handicapped ramps, and our Methodist Women's Circle's projects.
As we grow in Christ we will experience challenges and we will share celebrations. We will wipe
each other's tears and share each other's laughter. Most of all, we will follow the direction of Mr. Wesley and "offer them Christ" because Christ is alive in First Methodist   Church, Washington."	Pastor Danny Allen

The first service, full of celebration, music and, praise to God was held in the new Wesley Hall on February 20, 2011. The membership was 1484. The Wesley Hall space was filled with people filling each chair, standing in the back and sitting on the windowsills. The new space holds almost twice the number that can worship together in the Historic Sanctuary. The new spaces very quickly start d being used for multiple uses. The Contemporary service that had started in 2002 in the Historic Sanctuary in the 8:30 am service was moved to Wesley Hall.

With the Preschool now having a new space built to meet their needs, the space was now available for a Christian Childcare .We opened First Methodist Childcare on August 6, 2012 with 1 directort 6 childcare providers, 2 rooms, and 13 children, open from 7am-6pm Monday-Friday. First Methodist Preschool, First Methodist Children's Ministries, and the whole of First Methodsit were instrumental in getting First Methodist Childcare started. What a blessing and wonderful ministry to the community of Washington, NC! The church family was now energized for more local, regional and
international missions.

In 2012 a group began planning for a trip to the Ryan Epps Home (REHC) for Children Haiti. The first of what became an annual mission trip was made on April 9-17, 2013 with Rev. Butch Huffman through Methodist Volunteers in Missions. By 2016 members had financially supported projects for the teams and a·total of 16 people had made one or more trips to Haiti. Members of the team created a permanent endowment to provide scholarships each school year to children living at REHC. In February 2012 Pastor Danny Allen shepherded a group of church members to Israel organized by Bishop Alfred Wesley Gwinn, Jr.

On October 13, 2013, the first annual local mission called the Church has Left the Building was started and led by retired minister, Tom Jacobs. The church family moved out into the community to do work for people who needed help with house or yard maintenance, helped nonprofits that needed volunteer activities done, provided music for those in nursing homes, worked at the John Cotton Tayloe School and prepared flood buckets for UMCOR in our Fellowship Hall.
On October 27, 2013 an event that was named Singspiration was held in the new Wesley Hall. The idea came from Fritz Tanner's dream to bring all of the Methodist Churches in Beaufort County together to sing praises to God. The response and participation was remarkable. The event was led by Rev. Charles Mike Smith.	Church choirs from several churches sang for and with the combined congregations. Those participating were Beebe Memorial CME Church, Metropolitan AME-Zion, Warren Chapel UMC and First Methodist Washington.
On March 22, 2014 the first First Methodist Early Response Team training occurred with 19 church members being trained. The training must have been timed by God for an EF 3 tornado hit Beaufort County in Chocowinity and across the river to Washington, on April 25, 2014 doing extensive damage. Our team worked hard during early response and for the next year helping with restoration. The team is led by Dick Turner.
A new local mission, Matthew 25, served its first meal to the hungry and homeless on July 12, 2014. After meeting with members of Beebe Memorial CME Church regarding their mission on one Saturday a month and learning from them, we started serving guests the second Saturday of each month, led by Lorre Bowen and Shirley Stone. The guests were welcomed at 11am for devotion, live music and then a free meal cooked once a month by teams. Members of several local churches have joined the Mathew 25 team.
The church is the people, not the building. The church has become the hands and feet of Christ and used their gifts, and their treasure to provide a place for missions to grow and reach out of the building into the community and the world.
Church Historian Patty Vore Pastor Danny Allen
